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{

1 Tuesday, July 30, 1912. 10 o'clock A.M.

2 Defenctmt in court with counsel. Jury called.; all pre-

3 sent. Case resumed.

4

5 CLARElWE S. DARROW on the stand for fur- •

6 ther direct examination.

7 UR ROGERS: 'M:r Darrovr, on last evening, having interrogat- \

8

9

10

11

12

ed you as to \IDether or not you had a conversation om

October 511 with Franklin, and \mether you gave him a 'check

on October 6th, I as~ou if you gave. him any cll ook on

October 6th, and you said you di d not. A I did not, for

any purpo~e.

13 Q, I will ask you if you gave him any c heck approximately

14 at that time. You my you gave it to him the 5th? A I

15 gave him a check on october 4th for $1000 at his request.

16 Q

17 Q

Is that the c heck? A That is the c .heck.

Corre~tly dated, the date you gave it to him? A It

18 vas.

19 Q For what purpose di d you give it to him? A When-

20

21

22

ever he needed man 6j' for himself and his men and his ~­

penses, he asked me for it and I £!J3.ve him money, sums from

$200 to $1000 by check.

23 • Q By money for his men do you mean to pay the men that

24 were working' for. him? A To J;S.y for the work and his eiC-

26 Q, Did you give him this c heck or any other check for

25 penses.
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1 purpose 0 f paying Bain or any other j uro r any money v.hat­

2 soever? A I never did.

3 ltR ROGERS: I offer this check in evidence.

4 A Might I suggest, Mr Rogers

5 Q yes sir. A tha t the check be withdrawn and the

6 photo~raph be sUbstituted in t:te record?

7 1lR ROGERS: At the proper time, Mr Darrow. We willintro-·

8 duce the check first.

9 JvTR CLEBE:: Defendant's exhibit O.

101m "ROGERS: I read the exh i bi t. ( Reading: ) "Los Ang e1 es ,

11 Cal'ifornia, October 4, 1911. Commercial National Ra.nk

12 of Los Angeles. Pay to the order of Bert H. F.r:anklin

13 $1000." figures-- "One Thousand Dollars", written ont.

14 "C. S. Darrow, Trustee." Endorsed on the back, "B. H.

15 Franklin. Los Angeles Clearing House 33. First National

16 Bank, October 6th, 1911." Now, Mr Darrow, reading from

17 rage 369 of the record I call your attention to the testi­

18 mony of Bert H. Franklin as follows, commencing at line

19 17: "I asked him if he wanted me. He then asked me

20 what I tho~ht abOut }Ir Bain." Row, thiw- is on October

21 6th. "I asked him if he wished me to s ea l[r Bain along

22 that line and he said yas, and asked me if I thought I

23 could get him. I told him I thought I could; that Mr Bain

24 was the kind of a man if he didn't want to go in that '~y

Q5 11~ he would come out and tell me so, and ttat would be a

26 would be to it. He said, all right, I will give you a
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1 check for $1000. He turned to his desk and wrote the check

2 and handed it tome and I left the 0 :ffic e. ". . Now, that

3 is October 6th. Did anything of that kind occur, or such

4 a conve rsation happen between you and Mr Franklin?

5 A vmatever i

6 toMr Bain,excepting,possibly, as I wo:g,]d any otber-j.uro.r
- ---- -----

7 on October 6hh, and I gave him no ch ECk on Octok~!:_ 6J~h""----

~-- -"
8 Q At thatti'Jiie<n.-'d~oy01.1, "Do you want me to

9 see Mr Bain along t hat line?", and did you say, IlYes. ", and

10 did you say to him, "Do you think you can get him?", and

11 did he t ell you he thought he could, t m t Mr Bain vas the

12 kind of a man if he didn't want to go in t mt vay he would

13 come out and tell Franklin so, and that Vlould be all there

14 would be to it, and did you faY, "All right, I will give

15 you a check farr $1000", or anything like tha.t at t!'at

16 time or any other tim e? A No sue h conversation wer

17 took place between ns at any time •.

18 Q Now, there are a whole lot of statements in there

of that kind. I discussed Mr...;B::;:.a=i_.u.=.".::.,t~h_h:::J.m:::":::.:..._26

19 about ':hat he said to you and what you said to him about

20 Mr Bain. Vdthout going over them word for word, or seriatum

21 I will ask you if you ever discussed with l!r Franklin any­

22 thing about improperly approaching Mr Bain, paying him any

23 money, buying him as a juror, getting him to qualify, or

24 anything of that. substance. or purport or effect or

25 inclination or 1 €Rning, one way or the oth er?
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1 Q Now, a t the discussion 0 f Mr Bain wi th him, have you

2 any recollection of Ylhat he said to you and what you said

3 to him? A My recollection is not very definite, but being

4 refresh ad by reports and such recoIl ec tion as I have, I

5 have some recollection of it.

6 Q Well, state it. A State what?

7 Q yes--

8 MR FORD: Just a moment. If the court pI ease, the witness

9 has said t hat his recollection was refreshed by repo rts,

10 and we would like to see those reports; we are enti t1e d to

11 . that, under section 204?

12 UR ROGERS: I do not think so.

13 MR FOBD: The witness is just nO\v about to state that his

14 recollection is refreshed by reports which he has read,
. {

15 and ',';e are entitled to see those reports.

16 J.ffi ROGERS: G9 and get that big book of reports. Now,
,

17 you may state t11e conversa1i.on .• I will show cO'UIlsel the

18 reports.

19 M'R :EREDERICES: The further obj ection, that the time, place

20 persons present, hEINe not been stated sufficiently.

21 lfR P.QGERS: That is not the rnlewhen it is a defendant.

22 UR FRFJ)ERICKS: There should be same attempt at-out it, a

23 gen era 1 conversation t mt may have occurred at any time vrith

24 in a period 0 f two months, is not a clear question to per-

25 mit th e wi tness to answer.

26
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state what his views or his reasons were for t.hat; we are

objection to that.

upon to take the stand and directly state what happened and

UR. ROGERS. There is no rule requir ing us to lay the

foundation as to contradiction where the defendant is called

not contradciating, we are explaining.

MR. FORD· We are entitled to look at those reports.

THE COURT. Counsel has se,nt for those reports, and 1 preSUlt

intends to present them to you as quick as they can be pro­

duced in court, and it may take a few minutes.

MR • ROGERS. Yes.

THE COURT. He can go on on SOfl,e other matter.

MR • FORD· Yes, on BOrte other rna tter, we have not any

THE COURT. The court took no action because Mr. Rogers

illiKediate1y sent for the reports.

MR. ROGERS. 1t is jus t 8 in~p1y a gener a1 report on ;,!r. Bain.

A That is what 1 rr1eantby "report." It has been refreshed

also by consider ing the matter of :,~r. Bain and the length of

MR • FORD· 1 understood counsel was going on--

tirr.e he was in the jury bOX, and Mr. Franklin's tes~irnony,

1 have some remembrance of it myself.

MR. ROGERS. Q You may relate what he said to you about it,

as near as you can recall it, and what you said to him

about :,'~r. Bain, and all that was said.

MR. FOED. We object to the Question at the present time

until we have had an opportunity to examine the foundati

upon that ground, that the found~tion has not been laid.

2p 1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15
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24
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26 ,

I
I
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he natter until the

recoll ect ion is

have a: r ieht to cross- I
I

It may be I
say t

I

Will, I

I

1 do

fa testimony.

to them, too.

if we desire
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to finish it.

have always been required to produce

any of our witnesses refreshed their

take up.

we will sit right here. We are on that

Probably not.

We wUl stop the trial right here, your Honor,

the reports.

is undoubtedly some other branch of the

Probably we wont.

We do, your Honor) and we

examine, under the law,

MR. FORn·

clerk gets back here.

but it is our duty to see whether we wi11 or net.

MR • FOGERS.

MR • FORD.

when he 'See the reports we wi 11 have

4 I sUbject they

5 MR. APPEL.

6 SUbject and

7 MR. FREDER leKS •

8 any lI.emor andum

9, memory on.

1

3 MR. FORD.

2 unt il we

24

23

25.

26 !
I
I

14 MR. FORD. Tveitmoe didn't ref

19 it is of suff icient importance

20

21

22

18 refreshed only in part by the memorand,) and 1 do not think

10 MR. APPEL.

11 MR. FREDER leKS •

12 THE COURT. You

13 lAR. APPEL.

15 t es t ilIlony •

161 MR. APPEL· No, but you did.

17 THE COURT. The Witness has stated
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I can state without the reports, your

ed his recollection from.

of f act, we do not anticipate we will have any

to the question, but we want to see wbat the wit-

4 THE WITNESS. 1

3 ness has

1

2

5 Honor.

6 THE COURT . Of course, it is ir ~ular to proceed without it

understand~.ng,

it to counsel.

have any

7 but we will proceed without it now,

8 Mr. Rogers, tha t you will produce it

9 MR. ROGERS. Yes, 1 wi 11 produce the on!y

10 knowledge of.

11 THE COURT' Yes, sir. All right, go ahead.

12 I MR. ROGERS. Q. Go ahead and relate the conversation as near

13 as you can recall it about lftr. Bain and all the convers~ltion

14 you ever had with Fr an k} in about Bain. A 1 probab~y could

15 not do that,lL:'. Rogers, but 1 will give you the substance

16 that 1 can remember •

17 MR. FORD. At what date was this? pardon me.

18 A various dates, Mr. Ford, 1 couldn't give you any special

19 date. If 1 may preface it by simply saying that in every

20 instance where we passed on a juror all the lawyers and :l.r.

21 Franklin were consulted, Mr. Franklin because he not cnly had

22

23

24

charge of the getting of special reports on all jurors--l

mean general reports--but also special reports wherever

a juror was left inthe box With any opportunity of taki~g

him. The majority of the jl:rors, of course, \,-,ere not

accepted by anybody, passed out and disqualified,
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1

2

3

so state. :.1r. Bain Was one of the earl ier jurors and amongst I
the first who was accepted in the first bunch. :.1r. Fr ankl in

told me what the reports showed, tha t Mr. Bain "'. as a car-

4 penter, he had been a working man all his life. pe didn't

5 tell me, as he stated, that he had ever been opposed to unio E

6 he told me that he had known :,~r. Bain~ and believed he would b
_______-~ __,., d$i:t (WIl;Il

7 a good juror. Our effor ta, of cO\lrs e, in that kind of a

case, was to get as many men--

MP~JJSt~-:-w~_:_e~_~:_:I_I:_'_ ~--.",j,.
witness's motive. The question now before

8

9

10

11

12

13

the COU~8

/"-

calling for a conversation concerning Bain a~d~we move to
. //

strike out the corrrrJent of the witness'¥l)urpose as not beine
/"

responsive to the question. ~~

14 THE COURT. It is merely eXp"~atory, I think, to the con­

15 1 ver.ation, to make ~1igibJe.
16 MR. FORD. After he has answered the question, your Honor,

I
I

way of modification, I
I

s ro,r '} conver

. ' \ \ \.
\

necessary may be made, but the

anthen

be recited in substance, at least, and
•. < I . '

any'exp.lana~ion; it is different from a
, .,: t

I .' r I ~

question.-P'l.-!'t' ,to a witne~ss that calls for a yes

17 any

18

19

20

21

22

23

24
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1 THE COURI': The objection is overruled. I think the \vi.t-

2 ness is within his rights.

3

4

i

MR FORD: It vms a motion to strike out.

THE COURT: The motion to strike out is denied.

5 MR ROGERS: Go ahead, lfr Darrow, if youc an. A Why,

6

7

8

9

our efforts in this case, as in all cases, where labor

and capital \~re involved was to get, if possible, as many

men who were working men and vlhose natural sympathies would

be With our side as we could get.

10 ·MR. FORD.: Now, if the court please, I move to strike

11

12

13

14

out the statement of t he witness, "Our effort vas to get

working men in labor and ca pital cases It, and so forth, as

not being responsive to the question before the court,

\vhich is, "What was the conversation. U

15 MR ROGEBS: Now, if your Honor pI Ease

16 THE COURT: You say your efforts were were these your

1""/ instructions to ],fr Franklin? A I told Mr Franklin on

were interested in.

THE COURI': Motion to s trike is denied.

every occasion that that Vias one 0 f the main things ...ve

Go ahead, if you can. A Mr Bain sat in the

By Itwe had frequent .. discussions," who do you mean,

box: a long time and we had frequent discussions about,.--

l!R ROGEBS:

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
Mr Darrow·? A All the ]a wy ers, and Ur Franklin and per

some rI the men who were wa iking for Franklin.



5921

ter.

MR ROGERS: Never min d t Lat. Explain fully your reasons

for --

MR FORD: I have a right to midd something. I am address-

ing a motion to th e court.

THE COUffi':. And counsel has consented that it be stricken

Your Honor, I am

out.

MR FORD: He said, "Never mind it".

not accustomed to aee'~ that kind 0 f language in court.

THE COUR[': That is what you ment, was it not, Mr Rogers.

MR APPEL: ur Rogers meant that he didntt care for that

statement.

MR tOGEPS: If your Honor please, this is the defen mnt,

and these infinitisimal andpuerileobjections for the

sake of breaking up the testimony of the \v.i.tnes·s and

ed that his natural sympathies would be --

MIl FREDERICKS: That is, by 1fr Franklin? A -"_ By Mr

Franklin, ye s -- with th e wll1rking classes. That he ha. d

been a carpenter all his life, and M'r Franklin said he'viB.S

a man of independent character, and he thought he would be

a goed juror. On my examination of him he made answer

tba.t he helped organize the first union ever formed in Los

Angeles --

1m FOtID: Just a moment. To that we obj act upon the ground

that it is not responsive to the question. I think it is

apJ.Cll. rent tlat it is 1 ERding
i
to an entirely different mat-

1

2

3

4

5

6

'7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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Mr Fredericks; the court ",;111 take care of

this matter.

Am FREDERICKS: I know, but we don't 'Want this witness

to make a speeech on thestand. He is an able, capable law­

yer, who knows how to put his best foot first, but he is

nO'll a '1;1 tneas --

MR ROGERS: I take anecception and I ask my. exception be

entered right now.

MR :rnEDERICKS: It is entered. But he should be treat-

ed as any other vv'itness is, and not pennitted to make a

speech on the wi tness stand, and to run along and make

a running statement and speech, to vhich we cannot ob­

ject. That is all we ask for, that this 'lt7itness be govem­

ed by the same rules other witnesses are, so we may con...

fine the matter to see what we "vant to obj a:: t to, if we

want to Object, .but not permit him to make a speech. When

it com es to making a speech to the jury, making an addre

to the jury and going over these matters, he will have

venting him defendang himself and presenting his case, are

rotten and wrong in every court in this country, and I

will stand here to say so every time I can.

MR FREDERICKS: Now, may it please the court, that is not

the purpose of the pros ecution --

THE COURT: No.

1m :FREDERICKS: -- and they are not rotten and the,{ are not

wrong --

THE COURT:

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

·20
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22

23

24

25

26
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peculiar advantage of doing that --

1m ROGERS: I 'take a further exception.

VR FREDERICKS: if he chooses to, a.nd undoubtedl~{ vr.i.ll

be able to do it -

l<fR ROGEHS: We take an exc eption.

MR FREDERICIffi: -- now, a,fter alU th ase exc eptions -- but,

on th e wi tness stand, un del' oath, we maintEdn t. hat he

s heul d be bound by t he same rules that ot her va tnesses,

and if heis going to stray afield and try to make a speech

on the wi tness stand, a.nd compel us to make these obj ec­

tions -- we are making them against our will; we vvould

rather not have to make them; we would rather not have to

make them; we wouldJather ' he v.ould go

along without obj ections, but if he doesn't observe the

rul es or his counsel Co es not observe the rul es, v~ have

got to make them, t rat is all.
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ground that it

this jury as a

Now, your Ponor,

irr:pr oper, and a

purpose of not cutting off

Witness who has his pecu-

not a witness like the average

ideas, his narrative way of

Fe probably has a better command of

aw and as to rhetoric that

law ty which the witness must frame and

tested by the ability and by the knowledge

or convey them to the jury, if it were so,

the manner in which the witness should be

'yer ex?-mining him, and 1 have seen lots of lawyers

so def ic ient in knovlledge, both :t.o..-.

/
I

ascribes to the witness an impure

to make a speech. We object to

we ask of your Honor to permit the ex~in~tion of this wit-

fraudulent motive, and places him

tr ickster, and a fr aud

ness in tbe manner we are pr ceeding, for the purpose of

MR. APPEL. Your Honor, we take an exce t" attitude

a sense and to the meaning of everything hat Mr.

Fredericks said here in~uting to the witness a

his part to make a speech or impute to the wit

expediting this

his narrat ive • That

liar way

language than the or dinary witness, and that there is no

par t icu~ ar rul e

Witness, your Honor,

for answering in the way he is answering, or imputing to

counsel on the o~er side of the defense

part to give opportunity to the the stand

22 then, your

23 examined '11

21 lethe"

25 who

24

26

4s 1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9
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14

15

16
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1 couldn't spell their name rieht, and

2 to puiJ'''"e:l1 lntelligent witness on the stand and have

and who

this examina-

to show to th k

to go upon the

on to say what were

his mind and prevailed

allowing that jurpr

He is stating his sentiments,

they certainly have that right,

upon counsel on the other side. Of I
I

a r i ght·--they have a r igh t to keep out!

responsive to the object of the examina-

ave, but there is nothing in the statement of the

that would injure any cne except that it would show

the attitude of the Witness's min~~=.

No harm done--there was not'hing said here that wouldtion.

to have his

conclusio s or opinions;

and counsel here said mind that," he addressed that

iemark to the witne "Never mind", going into that, and

immediately question that would bring the witness

21 in any way

3 answer questions ir.. the manner that would convey . eas to

4 I the ignorance of the one examining him, and her , your Honor

5 we find a witness who can answer

6 can premise his reasons why, and

22

23

24

25

261 exa

I

15 I does no injury to any

i6

17

18

19

20

7 tion is--what is the object? It is

8 jury why it was that juror Bain was

9 witness stand, and this

10 the considerations that

11 inthe mind of his cocoum e1 the

12 to remain on the jury, and is the 0 bject of this ex-

13 aminaticn, and perhaps anticipating that

14 point, is going a stray, but it cuts no figure and
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1 was allowed to remain on that jury. We ask that_

2 allowed to explain what were the motives and his

3 of mind that actuated hinl in not objecting to ju cr Bain,

4 and that is legitinate evidence.

5 TEE COURT. Gentlemen, the court is amazed this heated

6 discussion that arose, that the record wil show, from a

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

motion to strike out a portion of the ajPwer, which counsel

on the other side imrrediately concedeo/Nas a correct motion.·

MR. ROGERS. no, sir, 1 beg your Hon~ ' 8 pardon; 1 did not
/

so concede and do not now. /

THE COURT· 1 inquired of you vv0her or not your staten:ent,

"Never mind" was a consent tOjthe motion to strike.

1m • ROGERS. 1 didn t t under::ytand your Honor--

THE COURT· Then what is y6ur understanding here?

hat attitude--

15 I MR • ROGERS.

16 I your Honor takes me in

isunderstanding, because before

or convey that meaning if I so in-

your Honor '6 pardon. I didn't mean I

19
20 formed your

21 to say it.

22 TEE COu~T. ;'hen I affi still reore concerned to know what

23 you meant. /
/

24 MR. ROG/S. This is wh3. t I meant: In the examination of

25 the re90rd last night and a continuation of the attitude of

26 ,~ir~ a tr ial lawyer,

I

17 THE COURT. That is )pe attitude in which 1 tock you.

18 MR. ROGERS. No, yo Honor, 1 have been mieunders tood. 1
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1 who has seen these things very many times l itueans2 to me /

2 that tiro Ford is making these objections, as they are SbOW/
,/'

3 by the record of yesterday which 1 have before me andr~vhich
,,/

4 has been studied by nJe, means that Mr. Ford is doing nothing
//

5 but trying to break up l.~r. Darrow's testimony ~/rth objec-
/'

6 tion after objection, puerile and infiriteS).£~ll done for no
/

7 purpose in the world but to break up tr~continuity of the
/

8 narrative and destroy the effect of;the testin:ony of :~r.

9 Darrow, which is proceeding in a ~ry gener~tl way, it is

10 . true, but in a way which we~aright to ask the wHness

11 to test ify. If your Honoywan ts to sift here a week and have
/ .

12 me ask these mal} ques ons as they m~ght come along, 1

13

14 in (;lr. Darrow"s stimony that was not proper. that should be

15 given. S ,e of it, possibly I may not have been responsive

16 to the

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

---
question and that is the puerile objection



undertaken

answer came back

in other vlords,

I f'B¥, and I maintain it,

Mr Ford's meaning is noth-

has come up. The court has

ing in the world but a attempt ·odestroy the continuity
I

of this narrative, ia his obj ret peurile, and I

have nothing to t a~e l:ack.

TEE COURI.'~ I thi~ we have gone into this matter too far

already. I ca~t agree with counsel. think that it

is, at least /~.aking the ~lork ~f thisEUUll ation much

slo~~r to !~into these matters in a se.mi~e sonal yay

21 coun sel to obj ect or not to

22 which action would be a serious invation

11 it vas jus t simpl~"

12 and I have nothing

23 of cOUlB3l, a,nd whether or not thedefense

24 the prosecution's motion to strike out was

25 the court assumed that it was taken, because it

26 ion and the portion 0 f th e answer to v.n.ich

9 I immediately asked th

10 in thesame words that we

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

~.l----h-as--n-o-=-be~~Said here tba~ ::=Oughtn~
2 tie. t your Honor does nahant t a !mow. On~ a

. 3 is po S3ible t hat I have not ask Ed th e mlestion1. to

4 bring itt. Mr Darrow being a la,\"''Y er lmo~~s soon as 1e

5 finishes his answer, I will ask that questi", or, ought to,

6 at least, and a soon as I ask it he ans~rs, as upon yes-
. / .

7 terday, on five d ferent occasions ,/:If your Honor please,

8 a motion to strike Vias made be ause it vas not l~sponsive.
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our Honor to take

whether my ability is

o.

v",.............·l...!>cken out ly 0 rderdirected,

vas correct a

appears

Ford. Your motion has

]lR

conceded by

THE COURT:

If th e court pI ease, my motives have bee attack­

s a:y this to th e court, Yj.4her it

on or no t my un~rstanding

the motion to strike out ba,.!not been

_~he law prOVine! certain tes-

o question abotlt your motives, :M':r
/

en grant ei, and th e court has
. /

Entire con fidenc e in your· osi j6n being the one that

you ought to take , as you i 1(erpret your dlty in that

rna tter, an d no cri ticism upoti . e performanc e of your duty.

MR FORD: yes, then I ~~l~Sk Y ur Honor .to protect me

from suc h vrords as puerilEI' and rott n .. whether my at-
. / .

tempts be so awful as~o bepuarile

rotten in this mattev, I have a right to be protected from
I

I
suc h language in this court, and I

I
some steps to protect me fran such

I
TEE COURT: Youke quite right in t bat.

I

1m ROGRES : II that behalf, I ca11 your
I

to the recOJ';a at 5904, and if I haven't

those wort to that record, I never saw a recor

have a 19ht to apply it to.

1m FREJi)~RICKS: I don.t think counsel ever

1

2

.3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



the term here) or from the use offrain from t

1 ar tenms. Now, letts get along.

:MR HOGERS!l;fr Darrow, you may state vARt 1\rr Bain said

in ~our fearing vti th respect to his qualifications, which

you s t~{.ted to say in your an SV'fer) but Which ViaS stricken

out,jnd why did you keep him on the jury. Thcplain your-

se¥ fully in. that respect. ..______----

1,~R '":HillD=1=E::RI::;:C::KS::-:~-;T;-;h:-i;-s-r-e"::-f7'Oe~rs~-r'"to-in court) does it) Ur

__"",-_-~'''''-'''~-'"'''-'''''-''''"'''''''''''f-"<-~,.'''.'''R'''''''''''''''''''''''''~"..."""">-,,,, ••_""-_....~,.._~"~.....~....".,'

--"""Yc"'~'''~'''~'"~''''-''5,30

THE OU~~ It isn't CL question of \'frat the record mo/
.r/

/,,,

sho\ on tfl..at matte::') but the use of lengue.ge of that kind
, /

cal ed for just exactly such a delEW as has oooyfred here)
i

I

and it acc omplishes nothin~. It is \110 part off/the case,
../,,/'

counsel must -- I am going to make thi-§ admonition very
/

hatic; counsel must curb their incliriation to use terms
/

that kind. They have been used tido much; they are used
I

00 much in courts habi·tually) and/have:, been used too muc h
if we are /

ca se) andAX atm going ~o get along vath this case

through in any reaso~~le time) it must be elim-
/

inated. Counsel must rest:t'ain trat impulse, no matter
. / .

I .

what he thinks about i t./ Counsel sometimes in an excited

argument) when a lawyelmight have a very unkind t bought

towards another, it fsses 0 ff and he :forgets it, but he

ought not to give ~presSion to it. It naIls for de­

lays; calls for t terruptions which occurred just like

this, and the cpurt does criticize counsel for the use of

a ter'ID that is!improper, and counsel is admonished to 1'e-

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

26

21

22

23

24
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1 Rogers?

2 :MR ROGERS: yes, and his reasons for taking Mr Bain? __..__.
~-_.__.-----

3 A I have refreshed my memory- by lofr Bain' s testimony,

4 which Ur Fredericks gave me the other day; \~.d.thout that I
,

5 probably v.ould! not JOOnlember as muc h of it. On Mr Bain' s

6 examination he said he had been a carpenter and a vlOrking

7 man a 11 his life, that he helped organize the first union

8 wer oIgcmized in Los Angeles; t.hat he never had any trouhb

9 with the nnions in any yay; tba t he simply dropped out· of

10 it at one t.ime when he left the city, as I recall it; he

11 I said that he Vlouldstand by his convictions regardless of

12 any other man's convictions on a jury-. Ee was en old man,

13 and I have found fram my experi enc e that old men are

14 generally more charitabl e and kindly dispos ed than young

15 men; they have seen more of the 'world, and understc~nd it.

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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6p 1 MR. FORD. Now, justa moment I pardon me. 1 move to

5932

2 strike out the witness's experience as to otter cases as not

3 respons ive to the qm sticn as to what Mr. Bain had sa.id in

4 I court.
the

5 THE COURT. 18 that enumerated to any person inAquestion?

6 A 1 do not think it was.

7 lID. ROGERS. It does not need to b~ done.

8 MR. APPEL. The question was, what was said between them and

9 what consfurations, wrat induced him, what were his motives.

10 THE COURT· Yes, 1 think that answer is all right. The

11 ~otion to strike cut is denied.

12 MR. ROGF.RS. Q Now, did you know at the tirr.e you took :.;1'.

13 Bain th'it :,~r. Franklin, if he did, ever visited Bain or talke

14 to him or gave him any money or saw his wife or anything of

15 that sor~? Did he report any such thing to you and did you

n:an he was.

money or any conversation with his wife. i,lr. Franklin told------
I never knew 0 f any v is it or anyAlearn it in any way?

Q Did he say to you at any t iIre, the next day or any other

time, that he had seen :Zr. Bain l had paid him the money, that

-­me he knew him weD and h3.d_f_o_r-:y~e;...a_r;...s--4.'_....._<:Ind the kind of a------- ---
Bain had promised to vote for an acquittal, and then did

you ask him if he I Frankl in, thought he would stand" did

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23
24 :.!r· Franklin say,"Yes", he didn,t think there Was any ques-

tion about tha.t at all, that his wife Wielded a great influen

tim and that she had prev9.iled upon hirri to accept
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1 money a.nd that there was no que~~tion about his standine

2 pat in what he had agreed to do",and did you thereupon

3 say, "That was good" or anything like th:it or in substance

4 I to tl:a t effect or purpor t, or any par t of it? A l!c con­

5 versation of that sort ever took place between us.

I

6 Q or anything like it? A Fothing that :.1r. Burns
v

7 detectives could listen to if they had been around~

8 MR • FonD. 1 didn I t get that answer.

9 MR. ROGERS. 1 guess they wiD strike that out Without a

10 puerile objection.

11 MR. FORD. If the court please, 1 call your HonorIs at­

12 tention to the statement by counsel and 1 ask that 1 be

13 protected from such language.

14 MR. ArrEL. 1 didn't hear it, what was said?

15 MR. KEETCH. Without puerile objections.

16 MR. ROGERS. 1 said, "1 guess they wi]l strike that out

17 on us without any puerile abjections."

18 THE COURT. You should not nse the word "puerile objection",

19 l\lr. Rogers. You kr:ow that and we all know that. Let UB

20 get along Without the use of those terms. 1 do not want

21 to give very much time and consideration to those comn,ents

22

23

24

25

261

I

and expressions that coUnsel on both sides know are not

seriously meant and passing to the person addressed or

!Jass ing one ear out of the other, t1"'cy ar e not regarded

seriously by lawyers, but tr.ey ought not to occur and they

must not occur.
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1 MR. R"'GEF.S. 1 did'not mean it for :,:~r. Ford. 1 meant it for

2 Mr. Appel and if \tr. Ford heard it, it goes.

3 TT'E COURT. i.1r. Ford beard it, the court-heard it, and it

4 I should not 0 ocur, and mus t not occur. Let us get along 0

5 MR. ArPEL· 1 th ink 1 can corcpromis e that, your Honor,

6 agreeing to take the blame for everybody here and get

7 along smoothly.

8 THE COURT. Strike out the answer.

9 MR. FORD. 1 did not ask that it be stricken out, there

10 was no motion to strike it :Jut, 1 just wanted to hear it.

11 THE COURT. Let us hear it.

12 (Last answer read.)

13 MR. ROGERS. 1 beg your par don, that is not the record.

14 A correct the record first.

MR • ROGEFS. "Nothing that Mr. Burns detect ives could not

listen to, had they been around".

17 MR. FREDERICKS· Whatever it is it is out.

18 MR. ROGERS. certainly the anSY'lcr is not corr ec t.

19 MR. APrEL. We insist on the record being correct, we have

20 been patient here.

but it has been stricken out.

difference in arguing to the jury.

to tte court's recollection of what the witness has said,

. The record VIas

Q Speaking of ;',1r. Bain, :,':r. Darrow, 1 call y,

The record is corrected now.

A word or two might make a great deal ofMR. APPEL.

TEE C01.J'R T •

MR. ROGERS.

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1 at tent ion to a memor andum cont aine d in a book--l do not

2 offer the book, butl ask you if that portion of it found

3 on page 30, under the head of"Robert F Bain" is what you

4 I referre~

5 MR. FORD. We object to the wi tness be ing shown the boo k

6 unless previously exhibited to counsel.

7 MR. ROGERS· wait a momen t until he gets through. 1 am

8 going to finish my que8tion if it takes a week. Q 1 will

object to that onthe ground that the proper

9 ask you if that which 1 now show you is that to which you

10 referred to when you said you refreshed your recollection

11 fr.om ra.ports.

IV12 I MR • P'OHD· I e

13 foundation has not been laid, and the document to wb ich the

14 w itnese's attention has been called and. concerning which the

15 witness has been asked has not previously been exhibited

16 to adverse counsel.

17 1 TFE COURT. Objection sustained.

18 MR. ROGERS. 1 said 1 would show' the book to counsel and 1

19 will at the proper time, but 1 must know if that is what he

20 refers to, before 1 show it to counsel, because 1 do not

21 propose to show him a docUlr,ent that is not the correct

22
document.

MR. FORD. We have no obje~tion to counsel conferring With
23
24 his client and getting that information.

25 A 1 can answer it from her e.

I
vR ArPEL We may ask him the quest ion--26 I\'L • -' .. •

I



1 'J'FE COURT'
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You rray confer with your 'Nitness.

It is not a matter of evidence--
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Q Did you ever before know, if it be true, which VIe do

MR FORD: The wi tness has nodded his head to th e jury and

the qu estion may be answered, and VX3 withdraw the obj ec­

tion, as it is equivalent to an answer.

]JR ROGERS: If you withdraw the Objection, B.nd he. says it

is the same thing, I will show it to counsel.

A If I did that, I didn't know it, your Honor. I certain­

ly did not look &~t the book when Mr Ford objected and didn't

know I nodded lDY' head.

MR FORD: I beg your pardon. I misunderstood it, a.ndI

beg your pardon. A I didn't mean to.

(Book exhibited to counsel.)

A May I look at it, 1fr Rogers, if you a re going to ask

about it?

}TR EDGERS: What do you answer tot he question? A This

is the memorandum, the general memorandum t hat I spoke of.

Q. Did you have any other report· in VJI'i ting that you

know of? A I S:.o-uo.t mea) 1 anz.. I-ID~ghthave or might not

ha~~,..~~?:1J.l~{ did -- I don't know.

"""'"Q Now, proc eeding tot he matter of 1Tr Krueger. D!ll you

ever know or h ear of Mr Fowler ever going to Krueger and

offering him any Dloney v,mtever, or ihterrogating him with

reference to being a juror, or putting four matches dovm

on the floor or anything of that nature, ki~d) sort or

disposition whatever? A Not until I got into the trial
. .,as, ... ----.-

of this case.
~M" .. ,t;
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concede -- but if it be true -- that Fowler went to him at

all? Did you ever talk with Fowler about going to him or

wer have anything to do with Fowler's going to him, or

have anything to do with anybody talking to Krneg er apout

his being a juror, or paying him money or promising him

anything whatosever? A ~ never knew Mr Fowler, I never had
.. -_._-----------

MR FREDERICFB: This present case? A This present case.

He says Ivas introduced to him at some time during t.he

McNamara cas. I probably \~s. I met so many people down

here, but I do not recall him, and I -- finishing that

answer -- I never had anything to do wi th anybody seeing

Mr Krueger; I didn't recall there va.s such a man until

I heard it here.

Q Did you authorize anybody to have anybody else, :Mr---------_--'--0-- . _
Fowler, or whmmsoever, go to Mr Krueger and offer him

_--__-=.ot-~-~- ",~~--~' ~....-..."" ..
anything whatsoever? A I did not.

Q Or endeavor to Pursuade him by illegal means or

monetary considerat.ions whatever, to either go on that

jury 0 r vote in any yay whatsoever? A I did not. I

me"Y nothing about Mr Krlleg ere He probably was ,-examined

here, but I have not seen the man since, and do not re.mem-
_ _ ... .-_<_.-_...•~~'~-- .. _ .._~_,-. ~.,:,_-""~~.:t..-.-_~~?~_

b e;-"thif t ever 'saw him -- I mean, he probably vas emmin ad
_____••• .,o •• ----- -------~

Q ~ovr;-you remember th e testimony 0 f M'r Franklin abou

as a juror in t.hat case.
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1 him going down to Krueger's after having seen you. at the

2 Alexandria Hot el, in comptny with },fr Linc oln st effens,

3 he thinks it is th e night ,according to his testimony, of

4 the 25th. Now, 1J[r Darrow, stat e wh ether or not on the

5 25th, at the Ale<:andr:ia~. or at any other time or place,

6 you authorized, directed, induced or :r:articmpated or knew

7 of Mr Franklin going to Mr Krueg er to offer him any

8 money, to see him or give him any illegal consideration

9 to advance him any money, to get him on the jury 0 r anye

10 thing of that kind? Just answer that question fully.

11 YR FORD: To that we object as to form, not as to sub-

12 stance, as calling for a conclusion of the witness, as to

13 authorizing and directing -- the prop er t bing is to ask

14 him what 'ViaS said and done.

15 TEE COURT: Obj ection overru.lOO.

16 A I never had any conversation with him in reference to

17 any such matter with 1,[1' Krueger 0 r aZWbody else at any time

18 or place.

19 Q, Now, he says, of cou rse , and you remember, that at

20 the Alexandria Hotel, you took a list of jurors out of

21 your pocket on the 25th of November, and that on looking

22 it over, you said, "Well, that looks better", or something

23 to that effect, in tbepresence ofyr Steffens, and ttat

24 you t dId him to get bUsy, or something 0 f that sort.

25 Now, state v;hether or not anything of that sort occurred,

26 and relate fully all that younemember of the happenings

on the wening of the 25th of November, Wit(bwJ.'(~Jljp~e\t;lI~RA
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1 Franklin. A May I preface t;hat a little with the ge-t­

2 ting 0 f the list?

3 Q yeS, I will include that in the qu astion. Preface

4

5

it by anyexplanation youdesire to make, to make that an-

swer complete.

6 1lR FORD: The witness has put a question to himself,and

7·. we are informed of it, and there is no obj ection to it.

8 A I will try to stick to what it ought to be. That

9 venire vas dravm, as I suppose i tvas eight or ten times,

10 possibly more during th e progress 0 f that case -- you pro­

11 bably knowemctly, and if you do I 'Vlill just as soon that

12 youstate it

13 MR FORD: I think it vas either 11 or 12.

14 A Well, probably 11 or 12 times it,as drawn out of

the box standing here on the table, and we,Jawyers were

in th e habit of \vai ting until it came out and making up.
our list right t here, so as to get it innnediately. In

the number, which was gen erally 50,. sometimes 40, we would

always find sane names upon vhic h Vie had no report, peopl e

were absent or something or other; but ~Je had no report,

and we would at once see tlat Mr Franklin got those lists

to get reports, if possible, vhere he had none, get any

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

additional informationvJe could.
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8p lQ, You say, "at once". Vlhat do you mean ,by that, 'iYnlediatel

1 do not recall the date except 1 know it was

2 after the list-­

3 25th day. of--

4 '("1.'''- November--

5 will a88un:e.

A lllU1isdiatel,; after the drav'lir.'g on the

A November-~if that i8. the da~e, which 1

6 a saturday, about that time '.-vehad a drawing in the IT!orning,

7 my remembrnnce is about 11 o'clock; it might have been a

8 little earlier or a little later, it could not have been much

9 later anyway--that was after--well, 1 wont state that-'-

10 the 25th day of November we took the list as usual, when it

11 was drawn out here--

12 Q At what time? A Before noon, I think about 11 otclock,

13 and on th3.t list, as 1 have learned by refresring fLy memory

14 since--l coul d not remell:ber it--fron, these reports and other-
I

15 !Wise, on that list of 50 there were 10 names upon which we

161 had no report whatevsr, whicr was an unust:.ally large nunJ:)er.

17 1 did not gE§..J12,g,~;t......t~·ankl-in·::,5t,3JJ_"p~a.CC!lun:t~_9J:~he
~> -. . ... -,' --"._~>._~~~~~~,.;-....._-- ..

18 progreb8 iri·-·tne-'Se-t,tle1!~errt#·6f--thecase .' .. -.-
---...... ,......~-" ..., ...."......,,_.........""'-~~'~ ~_-.i~~

19 Q What is th3.t answer, pease?

20 (IJast portion of answer read.) I

21 A 1 trought it would never be needed. Sometime in tr:e after~
22 noon, or towar ds evening, he either called me up or saw me--

23 1 arj not certain which--l think 'he called rIle up, and asked

24 nie wry 1 had not Eiven hi rr, a list and wher e it wc..8, and 1

25 told

26 Idr ia

I

him 1 would be taking dinner tn'J.t nigl't at the Alexan--

Hotel and he could get the list there, that was 6
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o'cloCk or afterwards, 6 or 7 or 8 hourG after the drawing.

1 had the list in my pocket, undoUbtedly rrarked from the---------:;.--------
book and from private infor~ation, from whatever sources 1--received, mostly from Franklin, perhaps all--as a matter

of fact, as 1 have discovered since, the list was much more
_."'" ~-_.:...'---------------

favorable than the ordinary list. Krueger's name was on
7 .,.-=,-~f,.,."~-~..,.~~..'.~-,-- " • ~h ".---._"",__,_-.--'-

...~tlt~_t.j.!~~.~ .._.._._N!'

8 Q Well, you remember that from the circumstance of the occa

1

2

3

4

5

6

had ~assed out of my mind entirely, and 1 have ascertained

by reference to this same book that Krueger's name in the..--------------
book was m~?J1"f.a.~~ What lwe called "favor able ".

t--

I did not at that time suggest anything to hilI: in reference

1 don 1 t remember--

A 1 only remember

1 might have known it then, probably did, but it

it from its being introduced here in

at all.

sion or from subGequent investigation?

Q From seeing it on the list here?

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18 to any special name. 1 ffiight or might not have said the
r

19

20

I i 8 t 1o.?-.~.~".E"~~t.~a:t;_~tP.9±t_':!~~\!e.l.J~.Qn,~~ ~r.:~.~:., __1_t_d_i_d_,_l_k_n_O_'_'1..(.
------.--......-'" "....... '-- ".... -~

th~ t. .1Je as ked me whe ther --he a ays, liTher e is not much

21 t iITe for those, and 1 had be t tel' get bUSy l' igh t away."

22 Of cOUl'8e, I couldn1t tell him what we were doing in this

23 case, and did not.

24 Q What do you mean by that,"couldn't tell him what you ~ere

a settlenent.

do ing?" Wbat do you me3TI by that? In reference to
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Q ¥ou me:.tn t1;e settlement ini tiated by !.~r. Steffens?

Bend him Bome men to help ~im, which was not an unusual

office and if 1 could find any men 1 would send them,and

He got the list and he says, he looked it over, there was

1 said after dinner 1 would go b,-:.ck to t~e

1 said nothing to r inl about it, and cou] d not.

time· tha t he was ',to" telephone to any· juror--

A yes.

thing With him.

l~_~~.:...~!~~~n~ ... '~..._~.~.~..~~Y ..~:.:lr..~ i t zE.:~r iC~_~",) 1

h~\e no remembrance o.f it'~ but 1 did not tell ',lr. Cooney at

an indication of how many men there were there upon

which there was no reports, and he asked me if 1 could not

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10 1\
11 Ii that'
12 MR • FORD. ~ar don me--

at this time.

THECOUR T . Yes.

MR • ROGERS. Struek out what?

MR. R0 GSF S • 1 wi 11 get tothit.

1 move to strike it out as not responsivel

A 1 guess that may be a tr icken out.

THE COURT. Strike it out. We will take the morni~g recess

A Tna t 1 did not te 11 :.~r. Cooney.

MR. FORD.

1iR • FORD. "Pardon me, you struck out tbe last part of it?

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22 MR. FREDERICKS. We can t:tke it up after'N3.I'D.s.

23 N'R. ROGERS. Yes.

THE COURT. All parties and jury are pre2.ent, gen~lerr,en;

24

a 251
261

I

THE COURT. (Jury adr[,onished.)

,( After r ecc,; s )

Recess for 5 minuted.
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1 you may proceed.

2 MR. ROGERS. Q Now, you say, you have s aid in your las t

3 answer, ~,ir. Darr ow, th at }fou did not giye that 1 is t of th e

4 25M' to ;·11'. Franklin at the usual time, namely, in the morn-

5

6

7

8

ing; did not give it to him until he came to you at night?

A The usual tim e, if 1 may correct you.

Q Yes, sir. A Was immed i at ely after it was drawn.

Q That would be in the morning, would it not? A Oh, yes,

9 or before neon; as soon ,as it was drawn.

10 Q And you havesaid your reason for that was that the pend-

11

12

13

ing settleQent had reached such state and condition that

you did not give him that list. That was your reason?

A ~ neve!__~~JL~~.Q-UBa-4~/td\- ~0.'~'1.--:t /
14 Q NOw, at the time he gave you and asked you for the list 0

tiona for th e settlement of the case? A pe did not.

associated was concerned, just the same, until it was

nected With the case, so far as the public and everybody

A 1 did not; 1 told

A 1 had to go right on With everything con-

-----_ .... ~ .. - ..~.....-.-..

did :.!r. Franklin know of the pendency of these negoti~NOW,

talked to you about the list at the Alexandria Hotel along

in the evening after 6 0 t C loc k, why did you give him the

Q Did you ever tell him about that?

list at all?

finally disposed of.

nobody that it was not necessary to tell.

Q. Now, that evening when you said you sent tim some men,

you started to say so~ethlng about Cooney and Fitzpatric •

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26 I
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1 Said you wouldsend them over to him. You may state whether

2 or not you have any recollection of sending Cooney and Fitz­

3 patrick over to him tl:at night? A 1 don't beJieve 1 have.

4 1 doubtless sent them, but 1 don't th ink 1 remember at all

5 who l-aent or whether 1 sent anytody.

6 Q There has been some testimony here with respect to

7 Cooney and Fitzpatrick on that night, that there was some

8 telephoning done ei ther by Cooney and ·Eit zpatr ick or otter

9 persons, to talesmen who were on this list, war Ding them tha

of such a thing being done? state fully all you have to say
such

upon th3.t sUbject. A 1 never said anything to Cooney

10

11

12

13

they were to be c3.11ed as jurors, as the case may be.

state whether or not you ever advised such a thing or

Now ,
knew

14 in the vforld. 1 doubtless told him to report to Franklin.

15 1 never heard the discussion of such a matter but twice.

16 1 did diacuss it twice •.

17 Q, In such matter as that, you meantelephoning-- A Tele-

18 phoning to jurors. One day, 1 don't know when it was, but

told him that somebody had telephoned him that he was about

know who did it or the members and he didn't propose to in-

He said he didn't

of them have telephoned anybody not to do it, becaus

side am I wish you would speak to your men and tell them if

to be summoned in this McNamar a case.

and said that 8omejurors__"9x......Q.Ile-.j.ux.or" whatever it was, had
__........._.'''-~.•~_,,1. _~_.,.-~,...._- ...•. "",.'-.~ ·~,·,->_~__ ..;'.~·_Vh-.. "·I!.'·,"'··~_........I'.,.._-r.-<·,...

dnring one of the previous lists, Judge Bordwell spoke to me

vestigate it> but he said ,"I am going to speak to the other

25

26 ! any

. I

19

20

21

22

23

.24
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1 ia hard enough to get jurors here the beat we can ,do, and

2 if jurors know they are to be summoned they will evade

3 s erv ice. 11 1 saw Mr. Franklin right after, told him what

4 JUdge Bordwell had said and told him that his instructions

5 had always been tono"t"-dO"""frn-y1t~iri-f€rrerenceto this

6 case that would not stand the closest investigation, and if

7 he or any of his men had done it in the past they must not

8 do it in the future. He said he knew nothing about any such

9 thing. Those are the only conversation 1 ever had in refer

10 ~nce to the matter during the progress of the case, and that

11 1 wi 11 say, was about the middle of the time we Viere getting

12 the jury.

13

14

15
1

16

17

18

Q And before the 25thi' A A good while before; pr.~bablY_,
....-"---.

q or 4 weeks.
.. ~

Q now, then, you say you did not instruct Fit zpatr ick and

Cooney or Franklin or any other person to telephone jurors, ,

or know it was being done except in thew,'Y you have said, whfn

Judge Bordwell spoke to. you about a month or so before?

19 A Fitzpatrick didn't so state. 1 didn't instruct Ceoney

20 or Fitzpatrick or Franklin or anybody.

21 Q Now, 1 attract your· attention to the matter of Lock'.'Vr,od,

mean in that way?

th~ng about LockwoOd? Did you direct, authorize, request I

or sugge8t to Fr:mklin that Lockwood or any other juror I
should be approach~d financially With monetary conSidarationt

You asked me whether 1 knew about him.

Do you know anything about--d':'d you know any-

1 did not.

Mr. Darrow.22

23

24

25

26 I A

I
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1 Q 'Tn any 'Nay; explainfu'lly. A 1 dontt know, 1 might

2 have had a report on hinj from Franklin, who has testified

3

4

5

6

7

he knew him "Nell, and he I, igtt have told me, that he knew him,
and that he h'im, don't

\
would trust 1 know aqout tha t. 1 don t

, \
,

recall any such thing but 11';e made me many reports of many

jurors where he thougrit he had certain ire or mat ion opini
J

or,
of his own, but 1 recall no such th ing • Cer tainly 1 never

8 had any conversation with him in reference to anything

9 I iniproper or un1 awful or corTupt with tockwood.

10 Q Did you have any conversation-with him about allo'Ning $5Q 0'
~------

11 Or: any other sum fo~~_pllr-pose' of bribing jurors, paying

12 tr:emany money, paying Franklin a thousand dollars, or juror

13 any sum whatever? A 1 did not. He never received any

14 thousand dollars from me for any juror.

15 Q pow, 1 attract your attention to the matter alleged in

16 the indictment that on the morning of November 28th you gave

17 Franklin $-4,000 in bills or currency for the purpose of

18 payment of Lockwood. 1 will ask you if you did any such

19 thing, gave him any such sum or had anything to do With

20 any such matter? A 1 did not.

21 Q You recall his testimony tha.t onthe morning of the 38th

22

23

he came to your office in the Higgins Building, that there­

upon he asked you for the money, told you that he was gOing

to meet LockNood, asked you for the money and that you gave

him ~4,OOO in greenbacks or currency, after having tele­

phoned Harriman and Harrim~l ~oming up and all that;

24

25

26



such as has been suggested or was there any such words as

Q Will you state whether any such thing happened? A Noth-

1 was there. Be didn't come into my private office at

any time, for the door was locked.

Q Did you see Franklin that morning of the 28th, so far

as you recall? . A Not until 1 saw him on the street.

594:l

Not when
._--_.~-

"-.'/ '
--_......-----.... --..;..--;. --

A 1 remember it.

~-----_._------
Did he conie into your office that morning? .A

Did you see Harr in;an there that morning"? A 1 did not.
'~'---- -...-.-=:...."':.:..::~.~f, ....'.,"~· ....f---..., ........;

Did you te~ephone Harrirran there that rrorning in any way

ing of the sort.

remember it, having heard it?

Q

Q

Q

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12
1 you have heard in testimony here, asking him to come up or

13
1 er ing anything or do anything, or say anything to Harr iman

14 I at allover the telephone that morning? V' A 1 did not tele­

I1--Phone him that morning, or the night before, as Franklin sa'

16! Q NOW, there is no necessity, and 1 wiJl not take you over

17

18

19

20

21

the exact statements that Franklin made about rr,eeting you

the 27th and the 28th. In your own way, :ltr. Darrow, state

all you kLOw, everything connected with that matter, so far

as you are able to state _. of your own knowledge, wher e you
I

',V er e that rr,orning; wher e you wer e the night before; whom

22 you saw; whether or not you saw Franklin; whether or not

23 you saw Harriman; where you went and what you did?

24 MR. FREDERICKS. This Was the 28th"? •

MR • ROGERS. The night of the 27 th ar..d the morning

28th, referred to by Franklin in his testimony.



1 NiR. FORD. If the court please~ if they can cover
594~

two dif-

2 f erent days they can cover two different months.· 1 think

3 just as a matter of precaution the witness's attention

4 ! ought to be directed to one particulqr day and then go on

5

6

7

to the next.

MR. ROGERS. There is no sanctity about a day.

TEE COURT. Two days but one inc iden t •

4 You speak of the incident itself?

Q Yes, sir, I want you to go over all that incident and

tell what you remember of your whereabouts at that ti~e;

what you know concerning it, whether Franklin had any suc~

your own way just relate.

anything to do With the matter of Lockwood whatsoever;

first at noon, poss ibly in the morning of the 27th.

in

just

I am speaking of the

whether you had

Your Honor overrules the objection l

Go ahead 1 :,;r. Darrow, in your own way;

Franklin testified that he had a conversation

Conf ine the answer to the days of the 27th and

Q ves. A

Q. Yes, sir. Well, proceed with that.

MR. ROGERS.

MR • FORD. Very well.

then.

conversations as he testified to here;

state the matter as you recall it now.

A May 1 suggest?

IPckv.,rood incident.

THE COURT.

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24
28th.

25 .

I
MR. ROOFPS. Tte 27th and the 28th.

26

I



inc ident _

any conversation with him in reference to giving him any

MR • FREDERI CKS. It makes them eas ier to hand 1e on the

papers put in 1 gave it to 1~r. Russell or ~~r . Harrington, or

1 dontt recall_~t,..... ~_.- ...-

1 did not have

1 don'tp:ecall seeing ).~r.

~----_._-------_._------------

A 1 probably saw Frankl in on the 27th;------however, but 1 saVl him nearly everyday.
"

reading of the testimony.

5950
MR. FORD' The only purpose of my objection, your Honor,

was that we might be able to keep the incidents of the

different days separate. 1 suppose the witness will do

that.

MR. ROGERS. There is no sanntity about a day; it is an

Harriman on the 27th--l might have seen him--nothing to

money for LOCk-Nood or anybody else on the 27th. 1 did not

on the evening of the 27th telephone to find whether any

safety deposit vault was open. 1 had no safety deposit

vault myself at any time in l.os Angeles. 1 never had a

combination to the safe in the office. When 1 wanted any

r.lr. Harr iman when he was ther e.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

headquarters. 1 sometimes had business or did see him
'-------

there sowetimes at the court and aometirr,es before, but 1

20

21

22

fix it in my mind. 1 mig ht poss ibly have seen him over to- -----_.-

26 tOl'rn over the S'unset BoulevaIi.d car line. 1 was living at

23 have no recollection of it. 1 did not see him With referen

to getting any money from him. 1 never gave him any money

to keep for any auch purpose. Ion tre 28thToec;~~~'-d~~~~

24

25
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street line and about the same distance from the Edendale

times another and sometimes walked down. Spmetimes in tak-

ing the Sunset line' 1 would walk down to tne track and go

803 north Bonnie Brae street, which is two blocks from

that line and about the same distance from the Temple

Sometimes

Somet imes 1 came one way and sOIl;e-1 ine near Echo Park.·

through the park and up the steps to the viaduct.

1 would go direct along north Bonnie Brae street to the

tracks, if 1 saw no car coming 1 would walk along until one

overtook me, as 1 usually did~ There were more cars on that

line and that would be the reason 1 would go that way at

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
-----"~.---12 times.

13 MR. FREDERICKS. The witness is now giving ~ custom, that is

14 the idea, is it?

15 A That is true. Shall 1 proceed?

16 MR. FREDER leKS. Yes.

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1

beli weI don'tOn that mornirg I came. dOVin that Yay.1 I A

2 I recall seei!1B Mr Wolfe on the c~~, think I did, hoVl-
___..__• ,~__"t'"Y'".;,;..........- ,~---~_.--.. ,~,_.--

3 ever, but I saw him frequently' on the car, both coming and

4' going. I did see him atthe time I got off at Second and

5 Hill, I beli eve it was that is the usual place. I haven'

6 a distinct remembrance of it outside of that. We walked ave

to the Higgins Building with him -- possibly I stopped at

the cigar stand on th e corner; I don't know about t tat.

Ar1'Y:vay, we Vlent to the office tog ether. We were both some­

what interested -- considerably interested in Mr Harri-

7

8

9

10

11 man's campaign. I was especially discussing some matters

I would come over·to 1fr Harriman's headquarters on some

political matter. I don~t remember the exact conversa­

tion; I don,t know v1Ihether I v.ould be sure, eK:cepting

did not see Mr F~rriman; had no business with Mr F..a.rri-

know t lRt I could be sure cf the time. I generally came

early, and have IIO reason to think that t his was 8..ny dif­

ferent from any oth er time, as to the time I arrived. I

di d not telephone 1fr Harriman; did not see Mr Franklin;

i
I

'."••••.••••_"~•••••~~.:.•• '-'. • 0' i""
man; no special business with Mr Franklin. I had been ther1

a lit-tIe while when someone calle d me up and asked me if 1
I

I
I
I

with him that I thought might produce some votes, or at

least keep them awa:y from the other fellow, and some ref­

erences were made to this case. Afteffi' stoppiiJig at his

office, as I recall it, we went into mine • I think I

got down about half past 8 or a Ii ttle ]a tel'; I don't

12
1

13 I
I

14 ,

15
1

16

17

18 I

19 I
20

21

22

23 I
I

24 I
I

25 I
I

26



I

I------conversations and ~hat I know~bout outside matters, as to

~~_"~~~~~-' ~lthOugh I thin~ he g~~~e his n~e a~_ the
. ?

time. It ''as probably around 9 o'cloclf!..~..,,_:L.Jmow itvB.s
_,,,.,.<,:,"i>"'_;"'''.A''''.,.;JI'!,''';)~~ ,,-,,,-,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,":,,,,,,,,,---,,,-_,,,,,-_,,,~,.............""...,"'""..<-•••:,-.'''.~....- ..• ",.,-'

4' before the session of cou It, an d my remembrance is that we

3

2

1

.

were to meet that morning at half past 9, but I might be

wrong about that, either 9 or half past -- I think half

past. Iwent doVID to go to the headquarters_ Mr Wolfe went

with me e.. s far as his door, v.hich vas along thesame hall.
.

His office is on the other side of the hall from mine,'

and I went out. I was on my ,-ay to ].[r P..arriman' s h ead­

quarters when I saw Mr Franklin. I ,vas going down on the w

west side of th e street, andcrossing 01 er about at the

Third street crossing. The Third street crossing does not

run straight across. The north side is north of the south

side, that is, I mean the part of Third street that runs

east fran Main street is south of the part that runs

there is a j OS in Third street.west fran Main street

I presume I'went across about at the west -- at vmere

Third intersects l[ain street on the west, and as I\",€nt

across I saw 1fr Franklin y,alking with a man whom I didn't

know. Right behind him vas Sam Browne, whom I knew very

well, and had seen day after day here in court, and oth er

places, and kne,v he VIas a special detective for the Dis­

trict Attorney's ·office. One or two other menv,-ere with

him. I aw Browne as soon a.s I sw Franklin and I had no
._ 'COli .. ' _!II.._•..._.... ~~-~".'a.:.~.;-~"""'".,.'~-_ ....~~.,.".,:--_._.

~hCLught~f an,y c0!1E'~ct~o~~"b~tvleen !1le .t!!,o- As Iv.ent
"- ~

5

6

7

81
91

10 !

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26 !
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1 across the street" I vas about\vhere they ,,;ere, and I did go

2 toward Mr Franklin with the intention of speaking to him;

3 I am not sure what it\'lB.s about. He VIas interested in

4 I th e campaign al so, and my impr essi on is it was sam. et hing

5 about t 1s.t, but I am not certain. Anyway, as I VI ent tovard-6 ~1.f!2r.owne~came,~.bet.Vl.~_EE!l u~c!.. sa~c!_._!J~~,Lh~~, ~~_~E~~t.

7 to a rrest him, 0 r som eti~t;i,ng_91'_tbat~}q.n<i...~,JJ.IXi.-n~t-~-to_.--speak~--...---------------_....~- ,

8 to him, and I didn't~eak to him. I had no telephone can-------..--"--'-"'---_. '-~"'''-'.. .- ,

9

1

munication tlRt moming from aI3Uone t1s.t Mr Franklin was

10 to get into trouble, as Franklin stated that I said. I.
11 never told him so. ~/

12 i MR ROGERS: .rust in that IR rticular let me stop you a

13 moment. At tlBt time did you sa.y to Franklin, IfT~ are
.

14 onto youlf , or anything of that kind, or, "that youare about

15 to get into troubl elf , something of tha tkind ? You hEard

Franklin's statement, di dyou? A yes. I said nothiqs of

this matter of the 1A:cNamara case vlOuld be clo--aed at once.

When llr Brovme tol d me that he \'laS about to arrest Frank-

---------_.~_.,

the sort. I would probably let him take his chances rather
._,_~b_~_·.',__-__ , ..". c,.~_-<,,,-,_,,,,~~_,,,,,,,~~_~, ,,,,,~~_, .......~.l_"'~~_~ ..~.__..........~."'~--: ..;.cW'

than go there, if I had known it. I said nothing to him.

At that time I exp ected
,. If

I said nothing whatever to him.

16
1

17 I

18\
I

19
1

20 I
21

22 lin, of course, I was very much shocked, surprise would be
...... !i4

23 rather a Vleak word for it. At first I didn't think \'.hat

24 to do. At 1 e.st ,. I thought -- I didn't proc eed to th e

25 headquarters. Iv.ent lack across the street. I think I

2G Vlent to Spring street and from there directly to thi.s
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bUilding, where t he case vas to com e on fur the ex:amina-

2

3

-------_..-"'~'-.......,.-...,--_..
tion of jurors. As I got up to t bis building) I EaW

FranidiIi--With one 0 r two other men and Sam Brovme be-

,e! I llin d him. I knew Browne very VIell, ahel I mid about \llJhat

5

6

7

8

Browne related here. I would not pretend to say exactly'

what I s aid. I said, ttWha. t does i t mean? If He says, "We

arrested Franklin for jury bribing." I said, "Tmt c auld

not be possible. If I had ever dreamed of any such thing

9 it could not po ssibly have been. tt I donl't know mat el se

_ ...-0> - ..... ~

something of that kind.

I had --I might have said. I vas surprised and shocked.

I came on into the court house, and came to the room

where they were getting the jurors. Of course, I told 1[1'

Davis about it. By that time itwas generally known amongst

the newspaper reporters and others, and we were, undoubt­

edly, all of us, wry much aggitated over the situation.

We went on about the jurors, however, for some Iii tIe

the direct thing thCl,t came into my mind was the effect it
_------ ,~ ""u'u . '-""_~h'~' ~ _,_._,,' ._,"_..,~ .• " .~"'---, .

YlQuld hay~ ...2;LJhe settlement 0 f this case~ for which I had
" ....,.'.., ..<_, .... -. . . ..• ~~~~""iI"'(~"'i,.·t"""-"-J'~~·.~""'-·'''''·_-'.. ".·•.,·H-·~"-. ...·...-_-_"':":·_;......,·.•:'";;.:l._""<,.""-#I

been working so hard, and vv'hich I looked forward to as a

he did, but it is not at all unlikely, and he made the re­

mark something like, "I will see; leave that to me tt , or

mes.ns of saving one man's life, if not tyro; possibly more,

and I probably said, "Is there anything you can do about

it__ tt very likely did. I don,t recall it, or I don't re­

call fRying t 0 him that I ViOul d make i t ri~h t Yli th him i f

24

125

26 !
I

I
I
I

10

11

12
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14 I

151
I
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I want to ask you if) during that morning or at any other

time you gave Franklin any money whatsoever for any such

5

6

7

5956
1

time until court adj ourned. I think we were not here I

very long; probably we adj ourned about 10 or half past f4(~,1t I",t
~ "'_I""'"""-,"~ r.~. .....-~.-...."..>,.""-"" ~~

3 ten tiat morning. Now) I think that about covers the morn-
~-- ._-_.~,~., --)

4 I ing • . ......==::~;?~".._..
Q, Now) I want to) for the sake of the record) ]xr Darrow)

1

2

purpose; you authorized) directeR) requested or gave it

81 purpose; lmew tlRt any money was to be used for any such

9

get it out of the bank, but I didn't have it any ....lhere

under your control, where you could get it or where you

I could

I mrer

A

A

I did, tyro of

I did not have

I n e.r er heard of sue hat hi.ng •I di d not.

Of course, you could go and cash your check for it?

That, is, you had a regular deposit? A

Ttat is all I mean by that.

Did you have it in a safe deposit box?

I mean, Mr Darrow, did you have this specific money?

I did not.

Now) with respect -- you say you bore in mind -- did

lin? A

Q

them.

day of the 2?th, $4000 in currency in your possession,

eouldsend for it, or anything of that kind?

money Whatsoever) to LocklJ'rood or any other person by Frank-

you have at that time, on the morning of the 28th or the

10 or participa.ted in any "fay in th e payment of any sum of

11
!

12
1

13! Q

141
15\
16 i

I
17 i

181
19 t

! else.

20 I Q

21 I

221
I Q

23 I
241 A

I Q,

25 I A

26 !
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1 had one of my own and I nwer used anybody else's, unless,

2 possibly, there might be some spECial occasion for putting

3 som e papers in it, vhich I don't recall now. But I never

4 used it for any sue h purpose.

5 Q Now, I call yourattention to the mattter of the

6 $10;,000 in currency that they have referred to in the evi­

7 d ence in this case, as secured by Cleveland Damni, a~

8 San Francisco.,,. O. A. Tveitmoe on a c hECk on the Riggs

9 National Bank. I will ask you if you ever, got into your

10 possession or un~er your control, in your hands, the pro-

11 ceeds of that check, or the money that that check-tas cashed

12 for or any part of it? A Had I better state that trans-

13 action?

14 Q yes. Erst answer th e question. A No, I did not.

15 Q Now, state the transaction with respect to that

16 $101,000 check on t he Riggs National Bank, vhic h \vas cash­

17 ed at the London, Paris & American Bank in f:an Francisco

18 by Cleveland Damm , and O. A. Tveitmoe.

19 YR FORD: London-Paris Anglo Bank.

20 1IR ROGERS: Vlhatever that long name is.

21 l!R FORD: Correct the record, that is all.

221m ROGERS: yeS, thank you. A Soon after arriving in

23 California, I saw Mr Tvei tmoe. I beli we I came by the

24 way of San Francisco the first time, and saw him then.

25 He was president -- or Secretary of the BUildings Trades

26 COuncil, secretary-t.reasurer of the BUilding Trades coune
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1 of the state. I had knOml him before this time -- about

2 two years before, possibly three -- met him twice. I kneN

3 in a g en~":;:~_:l:.""~~y"gf'._hi.!t connec tion, both wi th labor and
.. -- ~-.;»,......~-'.....~-.:."b..-- ....."..,."'.,~"....___"_'...;... ,:;;...,'." ..i'.),~i".'f~~"N"''':'''',,,,,.': .,.. _u.o:,,_, ...... a.

4 I the conrection th~claimed he had with the l,fcl:Taniara case.
~ -~';'-"--<'-""""""""-~~..,.,....,->-~...,..,.......,....,."""",_,.;se>,,:-."""'"_''''''''''-''"'''''----

5 I knew', of course, that he was more familiar wi th it than

6 anyone else in San Francisco, and was in a stronger posi-

7 tion with the Trades Union. He tol d me from the first time

8 I saw him, on several occasions, about his being, for a

9 numb~r of days, as I recall it, before the ~rand jury here,

10 in referenc e to the Times explosion dase, and about· a

11 great many people in San Francisco mo were called here

12 I for weeks in referenc e to that case. He told me

,.
I

15 I the expenses of that case up to that time, and tlat he had

13

14

~
about various witnesses and gave a general discussion 0 fit

all, and that he had been obliged to carry the load of

16 spent some 25,000 or $30,000 first and last ov er that mat­

17 ter. He aked me to reemburse him for it. I tol d him I

18 couldn't do it at that time, for I hadn't the money, but

19 I woul d do what I could 1a ter if funds came in to warrant

20 it. I knew he had spent considerable sum of money over it,

probably th ree or four tim E5 before this, he asked me

because I kn6\V the condition21

22

23

with numbers of thmm. Every

• I
cr peopl e there, and had talked i

I
time I went to San Franci 6CO, I

I

I told him as soon as I coul d do anything for him I woul

do it. About the 2nd of September, I don't remember the

about it and wrote me several letters in referenc e to it.24

125

26 !
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1 date -- I \~uldn't recall it except for the production of--'-----------
2 these checks -- I was in San Francisco and gave him one

...--J--".~""~"""~'~~~'"

3 of these checks for $10,000. He asked me to give it to

4 I him on the mon~nded·. I told him I couldn't

5 do it at that time, but there \~s more investigation at
-

6 that time in San Francisco then there was here. We had men

7· th ere all the while, and he also had men, and th e Burns

8 Agency was very busy in &tn Francisco, as well as every­

9 where else. I told him that he could take this, and it

10 could be used for the p~ry~!3.~_Q.:LJ@s~.~caae-:.y!:!reverinves-
~._..-.-.-~....~~~.~,",..,.., ..,~"""" ._,........_-~----~--""--

11 tig.ation was needed there, or the expense of witnesses

pose only.

was needed there, or if we had to maintain witnesses preced

ing the trial and during the tr~al, and that if I could

get any more he could have it; if I couldn't, and there \1B.S

any left, he should have it to apply on what he had paid.

I gave him that check for that purpose, and for that pur-

12

13

14
I

15 !

161
17

18 Q Do you know Wha t became of the ch eck 0 r wh ere he cash-

19 eel it or how hecashed it? Did you get any of the money

20 which he cashai it for, or anything of that kind? A I

21 did not. I· had not hing to do with thecashing. I gave him

22 the c l~ck.

23 Q Do you know Cleve Damm, as he is referred to in this

24 case, Cleveland Damm? A yes.

25 I Q

261 Q

I

Do you know "mat his ,business is? A A lawyer.

Whose attorney is he? A Well, I think that he



5960

1 :eepresents the Building Trades Council, as well as other

2 things.

3 Q State who had charge of the defense fund in San Fran-
,"""""'''''''''--''-~'''''·'_i''''''.''_.<'''_''''~ .

4 cisco, that is to say, the &pendi tures 0 f moneys on behalf
1I'~__ ~"y-;,,;e,.~...,.

5 of the defense up there? A Mr Tvei tmoe.
----_.~---.....:

6 Q Do you remember -- you said that there \va.s some consid'-

7 erable investigation going on t here. Do ,you remember, as

8 a matter of fact, that itvas claimed that the dynamite

9 vas bought in ::an Francisco, and that Schmidt and Caplin

10 and Brie e all were· in ::an Franci sc 0 up until wi thin a few

11 hours before the Times explosion? A yes, that was the

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

claim, that all of them came from San Francisco, and the

dynamit e vas purchased there, and there were a great many

people who knerr the various people connected with it, and

there was more investigation there than here, or as much;

perhaps not more.
rV,

Q Now, pu,rsuing tbatsame sum of $10,000, I will ask you

if you eve·r~hov.e?-yr Harrington any roll of money \tlat­

ever which you claimed to be $10,000 or any other sum

at any place or under any circumstances, and tell him it

21 was for any purpose Whatsoever? You know the conversa­

22 tion I am referring to? A I remember his testimony, yes.

23 Q Now, in your own way you remember the house to whic h

24 he refereed in his testimony? A yes.

26 which is close to Echo Park.

25 Q \~ere \~s that house? A 803 North
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1 . Q Do you remember whether there v"'aS a po mh in front of

2

3

4

5

6

that house? A That house stands very high. You can

see it for three or four blocks -- the highest house in

that vic ini ty -- that is not co rrec t, eith er -- on e or'

two still furt her up on th e hill. Three or four houses

across ·the street, more or less directly, and onejoini~

7 it below on the mme side of the street. There was

8 some 30 o~steps up -to the house, fran the street; probably,r

9 __ I mean 15 or 20 feet above th e street. You can see it

anoth or house. It stands some ten feet higher up. The

of my directions.

porch is very brilliantly lighted with elootric lights

The porch is on the north side. 100 feet from the porch is

below. t have said for several blocks. The po mh was on

the street toYard Suns et Boul ward.. I g et mixed in rom e

That woold be north, wouldn't it? A yes, north.

all J.B.rts of it, from the opposite side; from the house
,

u .....~....',"'W _

---0;:............ ...-.. . .~",;

all around it inside th~~porCh, and on the east, I don't

know just how many, but enoug h of them \yh en you pay th e

bill, but when lighted it could be seen fran any distance ­

any reasonable distance, and iims lighted that night

that Mr F..arrington sp eaks of. He was at my house taking

dinner. I suppose about that time, I don't remember -- he

vas in the habit. of eating there when he could, and his

daughter vas with him one wening, probably about that t·

I recall an evening 'lJhen he was there, when Ur Harringto

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1 and I went on th e po rch. Mrs Darrow and his d atJghter were

2 in th e front yard right in front of us,. a.nd we sat out

3 there a little while talking about the case, but I didn't

4 have any money in my pocket, at least, not any such amount

5 as that, and I hadn't had it and. didn't show it to him,

6 and no suc h conversation ever took place there or anywhere

7 else VIi t h him.

8 Q As hetestifiedto? A As he testified, nothing of the

9 kind.
-----~-... ---

10 Q Now, do you know 7my, if suc hat bing happened, that

11

12

13

14

15

you got the money on the 2nd of September in the sum of

$10,000 in bills, and had it in your pocket for the pur­

pose of bribing jurors, do you know why Franklin ~estified

you bad to d raw a check on the 6th 0 f October? _'~""',".jc'
~ __..~....---""""":_,"",,,,,.,.t.'

MR FREDERICKS: Obj Ebted to as argumentative.

16 THE COURT: Obj ootion sustained. A His conversation with

17 FArring ton

18 THE COURi': The objection is sustained, Mr Darrow.

19 A I vas not anSi<vering t rat. Excuse me. I was calling

20 his a ttention to something else.

21 THE COURT: I think this is<a gool time for the noon
~

22 adj ournment.

23 (JulY admonished. Recess until 2 P.M.)

24

25

26




